
     

Notice of a public meeting of 
Decision Session - Executive Member for Finance, Performance, 

Major Projects and Equalities 
 
To: Councillor Lomas (Executive Member) 

 
Date: Wednesday, 24 January 2024 

 
Time: 10.00 am 

 
Venue: The Thornton Room - Ground Floor, West Offices (G039) 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Notice to Members – Post Decision Calling In: 
 
Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item* on 
this agenda, notice must be given to Democratic Services by 4:00pm 
on 26 January 2024. 
 
*With the exception of matters that have been the subject of a 
previous call in, require Full Council approval or are urgent which are 
not subject to the call-in provisions. Any items that are called in will be 
considered by the Corporate Services, Climate Change & Scrutiny 
Management Committee. 

 
Written representations in respect of items on this agenda should be 
submitted to Democratic Services by 5:00pm on 22 January 2024. 
 
1. Declarations of Interest   (Pages 1 - 2) 
 At this point in the meeting, Members and co-opted members are 

asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary interest, or other 
registerable interest, they might have in respect of business on this 
agenda, if they have not already done so in advance on the 
Register of Interests. The disclosure must include the nature of the 
interest. 



 

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes 
apparent to the member during the meeting. 
 
[Please see attached sheet for further guidance for Members]. 
 

2. Minutes   (Pages 3 - 4) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the Finance, Performance, 

Major Projects and Equalities Executive Member Decision 
Session held on 12 October 2023. 
 

3. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting members of the public who have 

registered to speak can do so. Members of the public may speak 
on agenda items or on matters within the remit of the committee.  
Please note that our registration deadlines have changed to 2 
working days before the meeting. The deadline for registering at 
this meeting is at 5.00pm on Monday 22 January 2024.  
 
To register to speak please visit 
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill out an online 
registration form. If you have any questions about the registration 
form or the meeting please contact the Democracy Officer for the 
meeting whose details can be found at the foot of the agenda.  
 
Webcasting of Public Meetings  
Please note that, subject to available resources, this public 
meeting will be webcast including any registered public speakers 
who have given their permission. The public meeting can be 
viewed on demand at www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.  
During coronavirus, we've made some changes to how we're 
running council meetings. See our coronavirus updates 
(www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy) for more information on 
meetings and decisions.  
 

4. Implementing the Social Model of Disability   (Pages 5 - 26) 
 The purpose of this report is to set out a clear policy statement as 

to what the Social Model of Disability means in terms of how the 
council will communicate, engage, and deliver services to who live, 
work, study in or visit the city. The report also contains an update 
on the work of the York Access Forum and the move to appoint an 
independent Chair to take the work of the forum forward. 



 

 
5. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Executive Member considers 

urgent under the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

 Registering to speak 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports and 

 For receiving reports in other formats 
 

Contact details are set out above. 
 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 1 
Declarations of Interest – guidance for Members 

 

(1) Members must consider their interests, and act according to the 
following: 

Type of Interest You must 

Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests 

Disclose the interest, not participate 
in the discussion or vote, and leave 
the meeting unless you have a 
dispensation. 

Other Registrable 
Interests (Directly 
Related) 

OR 

Non-Registrable 
Interests (Directly 
Related) 

Disclose the interest; speak on the 
item only if the public are also 
allowed to speak, but otherwise not 
participate in the discussion or vote, 
and leave the meeting unless you 
have a dispensation. 

Other Registrable 
Interests (Affects) 

OR 

Non-Registrable 
Interests (Affects) 

Disclose the interest; remain in the 
meeting, participate and vote unless 
the matter affects the financial 
interest or well-being: 

(a) to a greater extent than it affects 
the financial interest or well-being of 
a majority of inhabitants of the 
affected ward; and 

(b) a reasonable member of the 
public knowing all the facts would 
believe that it would affect your view 
of the wider public interest. 

In which case, speak on the item 
only if the public are also allowed to 
speak, but otherwise do not 
participate in the discussion or vote, 
and leave the meeting unless you 
have a dispensation. 

(2) Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to the Member concerned or 
their spouse/partner. 

(3) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months must 
not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget calculations, 
and must disclose at the meeting that this restriction applies to 
them. A failure to comply with these requirements is a criminal 
offence under section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992. 

Page 1 Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Decision Session - Executive Member for 
Finance, Performance, Major Projects and 
Equalities 

Date 12 October 2023 

Present Councillor Lomas (Executive Member) 

         In Attendance Tim Bradley, Asset Manager 
Nick Collins, Head of Property Services 

6. Declarations of Interest  
 

The Executive Member was asked to declare, at this point in 
the meeting, any personal interests, not included on the 
Register of Interests, or any prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary 
interests that she might have had in respect of business on the 
agenda. None were declared. 

 
7. Minutes  
 

Resolved: That the minutes of the Decision Session of the 
Executive Member for Finance, Performance, Major 
Projects, and Equalities held on 10 July 2023 be 
approved and signed by the Executive Member as a 
correct record. 

 
8. Public Participation  
 

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at 
the meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 

 
9. Application for Community Right to Bid under the Localism 

Act 2011  

The Executive Member considered a report that detailed the  
applications to renew the listing of the following properties as 
Assets of Community Value (ACV) for consideration by the 
council. 

a)        Strensall Library, The Village, Strensall, York.  

b) The Deramore Arms Public House, Main Street, 
Heslington, York.  

Page 3 Agenda Item 2



c)  The Garrison Church of St Wilfrid, Strensall.  

The Asset Manager and Head of Property Services provided an 
overview, noting that:  

    Strensall Library was owned by City of York Council and 
the application was being made by Strensall Parish 
Council. 

    The freehold of The Deramore Arms Public House was 
owned by Spirit Pub Company Limited and the 
application was being made by Heslington Parish 
Council.  

    The freehold of Garrison Church was owned by The 
Secretary of State for Defence/Defence Infrastructure 
Organisation (DIO) and the application was being made 
by Strensall Parish Council. 

The Executive Member thanked officers for their update and 
she noted that the freehold owners and occupiers of the 
properties had been informed of the applications made and that 
no objections had been received. 

Resolved: That the renewal of the listing of: 

(i)     Strensall Library, Strensall , York;  

(ii) The Deramore Arms Public House, Heslington, 
York; and 

(iii) The Garrison Church, Strensall, York  

as Assets of Community Value (ACV), for the  
reasons outlined within the report, be approved. 

Reason: To ensure the council meets its legislative obligations 
(pursuant to the Localism Act 2011 and the Assets of 
Community Value (England) Regulations 2012) and 
promotes community access to community facilities 

 
 
 

Cllr Lomas, Executive Member 
[The meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 10.04 am]. 

Page 4



 

 
 

Meeting: Decision Session - Executive Member for 
Finance, Performance, Major Projects, 
Human Rights and Equalities 

Meeting date: 24 January 2024 

Report of: Laura Williams – Assistant Director 
Customer, Communities, and Inclusion 

Portfolio of: Executive Member for Finance, 
Performance, Major Projects, Human Rights 
and Equalities 

 

Implementing the Social Model of Disability  

 

Subject of Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to set out a clear policy statement as to 
what the Social Model of Disability means in terms of how the council 
will communicate, engage, and deliver services to those who live, 
work, study in or visit the city.  

2. The report also contains an update on the work of the York Access 
Forum and the move to appoint an independent Chair to take the 
work of the forum forward. 

Benefits and Challenges 

3. The key benefits of making the decisions outlined in this report are: 

I. Making a clear statement of intent around implementing and 
embedding the Social Model of Disability. 

II. Implementing robust Disability Equality Training across City of 
York Council will contribute towards ensuring both Officers and 
Members have the confidence and the knowledge to 
appropriately communicate with and best support disabled 
people; and  

Page 5 Agenda Item 4



 

III. Ensuring the York Access Forum has an appropriate Chair and 
robust Terms of Reference to allow the forum to work effectively 
with the council.  

IV. Tying in this work with the work of the Human Rights and 
Equalities Board and the work on the Anti-Racism action plan will 
work towards a better situation for those who live, work, study in 
or visit the city.  

4. The most significant challenges will be:  

I. The financial pressure of providing appropriate training for all 
officers and elected Members; and  

II. Ensuring all council policies, strategies and services are using 
the Social Model of Disability and in particular the language of 
the Social Model. This paper uses the language of the Social 
Model, including the term ‘disabled person’, throughout. In this 
model, people with impairments become ‘disabled’ if they 
encounter disabling barriers in society. The most common 
language confusions arise in how the word ‘disability’ is used. In 
an individual model, ‘disability’ is caused by impairment. In the 
social model ‘disability’ is caused by society. This is an 
important distinction. The council recognises that not everyone 
identifies as a disabled person and that some may prefer to 
identify as ‘a person with a disability or disabilities'.  

 

Policy Basis for Decision 

5. The new Council Plan, which was adopted in September 2023, 
contains four core commitments to enable it to deliver the vision for 
the next four years. The first of these is ‘Equalities and Human Rights 
- Equality of Opportunity’. 

6. The commitment states: ‘We will create opportunities for all, providing 
equal opportunity and balancing the human rights of everyone to 
ensure residents and visitors alike can benefit from the city and its 
strengths. We will stand up to hate and work hard to champion our 
communities.’  

7. Committing to implementing the Social Model of Disability across the 
council, as per the Council Motion of October 2022, will ensure that 
officers and Members are considering the barriers disabled people 
may face when implementing policies and designing or delivering 
services, which will contribute to meeting this core commitment.  

Page 6



 

8. Furthermore, having the York Access Forum in place gives the 
council an additional way to draw on the experience of disabled 
people and groups the city, who will act as ‘critical friends’, and to 
ensure it meets the resolutions noted at paragraph 12 in this report.  

Financial Strategy Implications 

9. There are already resources within the Customer and Communities 
Directorate working on Access. However, work is ongoing to address 
meeting the council’s statutory equalities and human rights 
responsibilities, and it is recognised there is the need for additional 
training resources to support the delivery of these responsibilities, 
including training on disability.  
 

10. Considering the Council’s current financial challenges, funding any 
growth in this area of work will require compensatory savings to be 
identified elsewhere across the Council. 

 

Recommendations and Reasons 
 

11. Recommendations: 

That the Executive Member:  

1. approve the policy statement on implementing the Social Model 
of Disability at City of York Council,  

2. commit to the council providing elected Members and officers 
with appropriate Disability Equality Training; and  

3. note the York Access Forum update, Terms of Reference, and 
the next steps in appointing a new forum Chair.  

Reason:    To ensure CYC officers and decision makers are 
working to a clear policy statement as to what the 
Social Model of Disability means.  

Background 

12. At a meeting of Council in October 2022, the motion ‘Equality for 
Disabled People’ was presented (see Background Papers). It was 
unanimously carried and resolved: 
 

13. To adopt the Social Model of Disability and embed it into every area 
of its working, operation, policy, and practice, including in how it 
communicates. 

Page 7



 

14. To review the extent to which disability awareness training, inclusive 
and universal design training and disability equality is embedded 
across the organisation in how the council delivers services, making 
recommendations as appropriate. 

15. To commit to genuine co-production on all council developments, 
where disabled people’s views are incorporated alongside those of 
appropriate professionals when considering inclusion and 
accessibility. 

16. Upon the appointment of an Access Officer, to convene a quarterly 
Access Forum, resourced so that it will work in an entirely inclusive 
and accessible way, supporting a genuine commitment to co-
production. 

Social Model of Disability  

17. There are many different understandings of disability. As stated 
previously, City of York Council has committed to use of the Social 
Model. From this perspective, disability is about the relationship 
between people and the societies in which they live. The social model 
of disability looks at the social causes and consequences of disability 
and considers how societies can be made more inclusive. 

18. The social model relies on a distinction in the English language 
between ‘impairment’ and ‘disability’. Most of the writing about the 
social model of disability refers to ‘people with impairments’ and to 
‘disabled people’ collectively, as an oppressed social group.  

19. People with impairments become ‘disabled’ when they encounter 
disabling barriers in society.  

20. The social model of disability focuses our attention on disabling 
barriers that limit the full participation and equality of people with 
impairments, and how these barriers can be removed. 

21. Disabling barriers can be physical or social, including additional 
financial barriers.  

22. Physical barriers might result from how the built environment is 
designed, or information is provided (for example, a failure to provide 
step-free access or easy-to-read signposting in the built 
environment).  

23. Social barriers might include discriminatory attitudes, stereotypical 
media representations, or social rules that make it harder for some 
people to participate (such as inflexible working hours or 

Page 8



 

prejudiced behaviour in a workplace). People can also experience 
discrimination at home, for example from carers or family members. 
Disabled people experience disproportionately higher rates of 
domestic abuse. They also experience domestic abuse for longer 
periods of time, and more severe and frequent abuse than non-
disabled people. 

24. Financial barriers might result from additional costs of living 
associated with impairment (such as a lack of funding for assistive 
devices, personal assistance, transport, or extra housing costs in 
everyday life).  

25. For example, a blind person who encounters discriminatory attitudes, 
physical access barriers or additional costs when travelling to work 
might not experience the same kind of barriers at home, or in a 
supportive workplace. Another person who is D/deaf might encounter 
different barriers in the same workplace, such as a lack of access to 
sign language interpretation when dealing with customers. The 
barriers for a wheelchair user, or someone who is neurodivergent, 
might be different again. The consequence of such barriers may be 
that it is more difficult to accept or maintain a job, which may have 
wider consequences for their consequent standard of living and social 
life. 

26. According to the social model, disability is not a fixed state of being, 
it depends on the context. Some environments are more disabling or 
more inclusive than others. If disabling barriers can be identified, then 
they can be removed. 
 

27. There is much evidence that professionals working with disabled 
people have not always addressed such barriers appropriately, and 
their practice can therefore be a disabling barrier. Here are some 
common critiques that the council will consider moving forward:  

 

 Medicalising disability: some professionals may view 
disability as a ‘medical’ issue that needs to be ‘fixed’ or 
‘cured’. They may focus practice on changing the person to 
conform to social or societal norms, rather than addressing 
the barriers that limit their social participation. However, the 
council does acknowledge that there is also a reliance on 
formal diagnosis to access some services and forms of 
support.  

Page 9



 

 Treating disability as a ‘master status’: disabled people 
come from diverse backgrounds and have different needs 
and experiences. Professional practice may adopt a one-
size-fits-all approach to disability and fail to recognise this 
diversity.  

 Intersectionality: Disabled people are not isolated in what 
oppresses them, be it discrimination and oppression due to 
being disabled, living in poverty, lack of status, citizenship, 
qualifications, age, ethnicity, gender, or sexual orientation. 
Disabled people have mixed identities and, as a result, some 
disabled people will be more impacted than others by the 
barriers imposed on them.  

 Individualising solutions: Professional practice or services 
often focus on individual solutions, rather than addressing 
the systemic barriers that prevent disabled people from fully 
participating in society.  

 Limiting participation: Disabled people are often excluded 
from decisions that affect their lives. Professional practice 
and services may add to this if disabled people are not 
involved in the design and implementation of the help they 
need.  

28. Disabled people and their allies have often criticised professions for 
failing to address their real needs, for placing too much emphasis on 
medical or individualised solutions and holding on to power that 
should be shared with disabled people.  

29. Moving forward the council will prioritise the needs and interests of 
disabled people over professional interests and be more accountable 
to the communities they serve. Policy makers will take a more holistic 
approach to disability, considering the social, economic, and 
environmental barriers that can impact on people's lives.  

30. Services will strive to be more empowering, working with people to 
help them to identify and achieve their goals, and supporting them to 
make their own decisions, rather than merely prescribing solutions to 
them.  

31. This will mean:  

Page 10



 

 Focusing on the identification and removal of disabling barriers. 

 Supporting disabled people to exercise choice and control in 
their lives; and 

 Promoting and upholding the rights and aspirations of disabled 
people  

32. Vic Finkelstein, Disability Rights Activist and Writer stated that ‘Such 
an alliance [between public services and disabled people] has the 
potential to reintroduce innovation, initiative, excitement and personal 
reward in delivering the community based support that disabled 
people want’ (Finkelstein, 1991).  

33. There are already several workstreams in progress to try and 
address some of these barriers, though it is important to note that 
these are in their early stages and will be improved and refined as 
feedback is received. 

34. Accessible Venues  

The Access Team have worked alongside Access Included Ltd to 
create an access audit document to assess City of York Council 
locations from an accessibility perspective. The team have been 
working closely with York Learning on assessing some of the venues 
they use for Adult Education. 

The council also funds over 70 individual place assessments through 
its contract with Access-ABLE.  

35. Accessible Consultations  

All surveys and consultations will be available online. However, the 
council acknowledges that more needs to be done to reach those 
who cannot, or choose not to, access content online.  

Through the development of Blue Badge Consultation Phase 1 the 
Access Team worked closely with the Communications Team to 
develop new methods to enable residents and visitors to receive and 
complete surveys produced by City of York Council. 

This work focused on how to improve: 

 non-digital access. 

 web accessibility options.  

Page 11



 

Following on from feedback received during Blue Badge Consultation 
Phase 1, the team have developed a range of different options for 
responding to or accessing consultations (Table 1). 

 

Table 1 

Ways to complete and return your questionnaire 

1 
Respond 
online 

Please visit: 
(Your project webpage Link) 

2 
Or use this 
QR code: 

Use the camera on your smart device to 
scan the QR code which will take you to 
the questionnaire 

Add QR 
Code here 

3 
Scan and 
email 

Complete, scan and email your response to: 
(Enter project email address for responders) 

4 Visit us 
Drop into any Explore library or West Offices where we 
can assist you to complete online. 

5 
Help over 
the phone  

Call customer Service on 01904 551550 and leave 
your number and we will call you back. 

6 Drop off 
Hand in the completed form at any Explore Library or 
at West Offices. 

7 
Return by 
freepost 

Call our Customer Services team on 01904 551550 to 
request a freepost return envelope. 

8 
Return by 
freepost 

Name of consultation 
Freepost RTEG-TYYU-KLTZ 
CYC, West Offices, Station Rise, York YO1 6GA 

9 

Video Relay 
Service 
(British 
Sign 
Language) 

Use our British Sign Language Video 
Relay Service: 
www.york.gov.uk/BSLInterpretingService 
Select ‘Switchboard’ from the menu.  

 

36. Web Accessibility for Consultations  

The Access Team have worked closely with our Web Services Team 
to make sure there are accessible versions of any consultation which 

Page 12

http://www.york.gov.uk/BSLInterpretingService


 

can be chosen by the Communications Team, depending on the type 
of consultation, and expected stakeholders. 

Options can include: 

 British Sign Language videos 

 Easy Read 

 Large Print 

 Audio recordings 

37. Alternative Formats Statement 

Until a formal agreement has been made in respect to how City of York 
Council can enable requests for alternative formats the following 
temporary statement has been adopted (see Table 2).  

Table 2 

Alternative formats 

If you require this document in an alternative format (e.g., large print, braille, 
Audio, BSL, Easy Read or a language other than English) you can: 

 
Email us at:  cycaccessteam@york.gov.uk 

 

Call us on 01904 551550 and customer services will pass your 
request onto the Access Team 

 Use our BSL Video Relay Service: 
www.york.gov.uk/BSLInterpretingService 
Select ‘Switchboard’ from the menu. 

 

 

38. Disabled Staff Network  

The Disabled Staff Network started in December 2022 and seeks to 
provide a safe space for frank and open discussions about what it 
means to be a disabled person, or carer, working for City of York 
Council.  

It is hoped the network will improve the experience of working for the 
council by raising awareness of disability concerns and working 
alongside other staff networks where there may be joint interests. 

York Access Forum 

Page 13

mailto:cycaccessteam@york.gov.uk
http://www.york.gov.uk/BSLInterpretingService


 

39. City of York Council committed to employ an Access Officer as part 
of the previously discussed motion and they have been in post since 
November 2022.  

40. One of the Access Officer’s first acts was to convene a disability 
advisory group in March 2023. This became known as York Access 
Forum.  

41. It has now been agreed that the group would benefit from having a 
Chair who is independent of the Council. 

42. Council Officers have worked with York Access Forum members to 
produce new Terms of Reference (see Annex A).  

43. In the period March 2023 to November 2023 York Access Forum 
considered issues including: 

 Draft Local Transport Plan Consultation Strategy  

 Supplementary Planning Group 

 City Centre Access Consultation  

 Review of Coney Street Riverside Project (post consultation) 

 York Christmas Market Accessibility  

 Parking Ticket Machines 

 ‘Gold Standard’ Car Parks  

 York Station Gateway  

 Blue Badge Application Process  

 Supplementary Planning Documents  

 Acomb Seating Trial  

 

Training  

44. To further embed the Social Model of Disability it is essential that 
Disability Equality Training is made a mandatory part of the council’s 
training and induction package, for both officers and elected 
Members.  

45.  Good quality Disability Equality Training in the workplace can 
contribute towards:  

 Meeting the legal requirements of disability discrimination 
legislation such as the Equality Act (2010). 

Page 14



 

 Staff and Members having the confidence and the knowledge to 
appropriately communicate with and best support disabled people. 

 Staff and Members feeling confident and empowered to challenge 
each other on disability rights issues.  

 The knowledge to plan an inclusive and accessible meeting, 
consultations, and events. 

 Ensuring that customer facing services, policies, and procedures 
are accessible. 

 Ensuring that internal and external communication is reflective of 
best practice accessibility guidelines, tone, and terminology. 

 Demonstrating how the council is becoming disability confident. 

 Increase staff retention and disability disclosure; and 

 Embedding inclusion into the ethos of the organisation, in line with 
the commitments in the Council Plan.  

46. As stated in paragraphs 9-10, there will be significant costs incurred 
to provide this level of training across the council. This is because it 
will need to be provided by a qualified and experienced trainer from 
an appropriate organisation and held in person.   

47. Human Resources will consider how performance management 
systems can be used measure completion of this training. 

48. The recently reconvened Human Rights and Equalities Board 
(Outside bodies - Human Rights and Equalities Board (york.gov.uk)) 
will also monitor the completion of this training as part of its ongoing 
review of the council’s work on Equalities and Human Rights.  

Consultation Analysis 

49.  The portfolio holder, along with senior officers, has met with 
members of the York Access Forum and the wider disabled 
community to develop the proposals included in this report, including 
the Terms of Reference.  

Options Analysis and Evidential Basis 

Options  

50. The two options the Executive Member could consider in respect of 
this report are below:  

Page 15

https://democracy.york.gov.uk/mgOutsideBodyDetails.aspx?ID=947


 

1. To accept the recommendations at paragraph 11 

2. To choose not to implement the recommendations.  

Analysis 

51. Officers recommend Option 1, to accept the recommendations, as 

the resolution to adopt the Social Model of Disability and embed it 
across the council was passed unanimously at Council in October 
2022.  

 

Organisational Impact and Implications 

52.  

 Financial – The financial implications are outlined in 
paragraphs 9-10. Whilst staffing costs will remain within 
existing budgets, further resources will be needed for training 
purposes across all equalities responsibilities. There will be a 
requirement to seek and cost out the training resources 
required to fulfil the commitment and given the financial 
position of the council it will be necessary to reprioritise 
budgets before the training can be rolled out.  

 Human Resources - An additional post will be created to 
lead Equality, Diversity and Inclusion in the council, including 
work to support York Access Forum and the Access Officer. 
Resources will be built into the Equalities, Access & Inclusion 
Team in the new financial year. A renewed focus on all 
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion and Disability Equality 
training, inclusive practice and language will positively impact 
staff as well as residents. Funding will need to be assigned 
for training outside of the committed workforce training 
budget to deliver this training. Existing Equality, Diversity and 
Inclusion training, which is currently available online and self-
managed, can also be used as part of a blended learning 
package. 

 Legal – The Council must comply with the public sector 
equality duty as set out in s149 of the Equality Act. This 
means in relation to making a decision, the decision-maker 
must firstly understand their obligations under the public 
sector equality duty. This is a duty to have due regard to the 
need to: 

Page 16



 

 eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and 
any other conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act 

 advance equality of opportunity between persons who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and persons 
who do not share it; and 

 foster good relations between persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do 
not share it. 

Technical guidance provided by the Equality and Human 
Rights Commission assists public bodies in discharging the 
duty in practice and this is expressly brought to Members’ 
attention (See background documents).  

The courts have established that the potential impact of a 
decision on people with different protected characteristics is 
a mandatory relevant consideration in such decision making. 
The manner of assessing that impact is discretionary. Often 
an Equality Impact Assessment is an appropriate tool but is 
not the only available tool. It is the quality of the assessment 
whether that is presented in an Equality Impact Assessment 
or some other evaluative report which is important. 

Article 7.2.1 of the council Constitution requires that all 
decisions taken on and behalf of the Council will made 
respect for human rights and equality of opportunity, and this 
includes disability. 

 Procurement – There are no direct procurement impacts 
contained in this report. However, protected characteristics 
such as disability can be focused upon when considering 
social value in procurement and the new Human Rights and 
Equalities Analysis Tool will be used prior to starting a 
procurement exercise or reviewing a contract.   

 Health and Wellbeing – The United Kingdom is a signatory 
to the International Covenant on Economic, Social and 
Cultural Rights. This means the United Kingdom is bound, in 
international law, to protect the right to health.  

A Council Plan core commitment is Health and Wellbeing. 
This means reducing health inequalities, taking a ‘Health in 
All Policies’ approach, with good education, jobs, travel, 

Page 17



 

housing, better access to health and social care services and 

environmental sustainability.  

Public Health will take a holistic approach to disability, 
considering the social, economic, and environmental barriers 
that can impact on people's lives. 

 Environment and Climate action - In a resolution of 8 
October 2021, the United Nations Human Rights Council 
recognised that access to a healthy and sustainable 
environment is a universal right. Although nonbinding, this 
resolution could be a first step towards filling a significant 
gap in international law. City of York Council should ensure 
that the financial burden of climate action is not carried by 
those groups who can least afford it, and this will include 
some members of the disabled community.  

It will also be incredibly important to balance any moves to 
more sustainable methods of transport and construction with 
people’s access needs. There is often a focus on changes to 
the built environment and travel which impact negatively on 
disabled people. The council will work to avoid any form of 
eco-ableism.  

 Affordability – Article 25 of the Universal Declaration of 
Human Rights states ‘Everyone has the right to a standard of 
living adequate for the health and well-being of himself and 
of his family, including food, clothing, housing and medical 
care and necessary social services, and the right to security 
in the event of unemployment, sickness, disability, 
widowhood, old age or other lack of livelihood in 
circumstances beyond his control’.  

The core commitment within the Council Plan on affordability 
states that everyone who lives in York should benefit from 
the success of the city, targeting support at those who need 
it most and supporting people to build on their own strengths 
and draw on those of the people around them. Implementing 
the Social Model will contribute to ensuring that this 
commitment is equally effective for disabled people and that 
barriers to this are removed.   

Equalities and Human Rights - The Social Model of 
Disability approach is enshrined in the United Nations 
Convention on the Rights of Disabled People, to which the 
United Kingdom is a signatory. The United Nations 

Page 18



 

Convention states that “disability results from the interaction 
between persons with impairments and attitudinal and 
environmental barriers that hinders their full and effective 
participation in society on an equal basis with others”. If fully 
realised, the Social Model would transform society, removing 
barriers and meaning that disabled people would be able to 
participate fully in society. 

 Data Protection and Privacy - As there is no personal data, 
special categories of personal data or criminal offence data 
being processed, there is no requirement to complete a Data 
Protection Impact Assessment. This is evidenced by 
completion of Data Protection Impact Assessment screening 
questions AD-02564.   

 Communications The communications service annual plan 
is being developed to take account of the commitments of 
the newly adopted council plan, 'One City for all', and 
consequently work done by the Council to create 
opportunities for all, providing equal opportunity and 
balancing the human rights of everyone to ensure residents 
and visitors alike can benefit from the city and its strengths 
will be intrinsic to communications activity. The 
communications team will ensure that all future internal and 
external communications use language compatible with the 
Social Model of Disability.   

 Economy - There are no direct economic impacts contained 
in this report. However, Article 23 of the Universal 
Declaration of Human Rights states ‘Everyone has the right 
to work, to free choice of employment, to just and favourable 
conditions of work and to protection against unemployment.’ 
By working both internally and externally to improve disability 
awareness and to remove disabling barriers, City of York 
Council can increase opportunities for those disabled 
residents who may wish to access employment or 
volunteering.  

Risks and Mitigations 

35. The main risk that has been identified in relation to the proposals 
contained in this report is that, in not clearly implementing the Social 
Model of Disability, the council would not be fulfilling its 
responsibilities under the Equality Act 2010.  

Page 19



 

36. To not move forward with this commitment to the Social Model of 
Disability would also significantly impact the Council’s ability to 
deliver on its key commitments to Human Rights and Equalities and 
allow barriers currently impacting disabled people in the city to 
continue unchallenged.  

 

Wards Impacted  

All  

 

 

Contact details: 

For further information please contact the author of this Decision Report. 

Author 

Name: Laura Williams  

Job Title: Assistant Director Customer, Communities 
and Inclusion  

Service Area: Customer and Communities  

Telephone: 07563 252249 

Report approved: Yes 

Date: 15 January 2024 

 

 

Background papers 

 

Agenda Supplement – Council, 20 October 2022, Motion ‘Equality for 
Disabled People’ (Public Pack)Agenda Supplement Agenda Supplement 
for Council, 20/10/2022 18:30 (york.gov.uk) 

Technical Guidance on Public Sector Equality Duty 
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/publication-download/technical-
guidance-public-sector-equality-duty-england 

 

Annexes 

Page 20

https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/b36680/Agenda%20Supplement%20Thursday%2020-Oct-2022%2018.30%20Council.pdf?T=9
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/b36680/Agenda%20Supplement%20Thursday%2020-Oct-2022%2018.30%20Council.pdf?T=9
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/publication-download/technical-guidance-public-sector-equality-duty-england
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/publication-download/technical-guidance-public-sector-equality-duty-england


 

Annex A: Draft Terms of Reference – York Access Forum 

 

Abbreviations  

During the consultation on this paper, it was raised that the use of 
abbreviations in council papers is a barrier to several different groups. 
As such, there are no abbreviations contained in this document.   

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Annex A 

York Access Forum – Draft Terms of Reference 

 

Purpose 

 To provide an opportunity for disabled people and representatives 

of groups and organisations supporting disabled people to meet 

Council officers and Members on a formal basis to discuss issues 

around access and disability.  

 To advise City of York Council on steps required to ensure that 

Social Model of Disability is further embedded within the council 

and to increase knowledge and awareness of the barriers faced by 

disabled people amongst elected Members and officers.  

 To enable the Council to use the forum as one means of consulting 

on the implications for disabled people of its policies and plans and 

to raise awareness of those across the wider disabled community 

via the representatives on the forum.  

 To enable representatives from the disabled community to raise 

matters of concern at the forum in order that they can then be 

considered by the relevant council officers or council committee.  

 To come together to discuss issues which impact on the disabled 

community.  

The remit of York Access Forum is:  

 To promote co-ordinated action which works towards equality and 

human rights for disabled people in York by influencing other 

groups and bodies with executive responsibilities.  

 To work in partnership with disabled people, and organisations 

supporting disabled people, to challenge attitudes.  

 To promote and support the development of good practice locally 

and identify instances of bad practice.  

 To receive reports and presentations, and consider feedback on 

issues raised, from:  

a. Council Officers  

b. Disability Organisations 

c. Councillors  

d. Others as considered appropriate by the Chair. 

Page 23



 

 

 To produce, make public, and keep under review a forward plan for 

each municipal year and to produce an annual report.  

 

Chair  

The forum will be Chaired by a person independent of the council.   

This should be:  

 In the first instance someone nominated from within the 

membership of the forum, with lived experience. 

 Failing that someone outside of the forum who is nominated by the 

forum, ideally with lived experience.  

 If the forum is unable to find someone suitable then an elected 

Member of the council, with lived experience, may act as a 

temporary Chair.  

Membership  

The Forum will have a core membership drawn from:  
 

 Disabled people or those with lived experience 

 Groups or organisations working to support disabled people.  

The Chair will endeavour to make sure the forum membership is 

representative of a range of access needs.  

From time-to-time experts by lived experience, or profession/academic 

experts, may be invited to meetings for specific items. 

Secretariat support will be provided by CYC. CYC officers will provide 

information for review in good time and ensure that requests for 

reasonable adjustments have been met and that meetings, and 

information being presented at those meetings, is accessible to all.  

Conflict of Interest  

Any potential conflict of interest should be raised by forum members at 

the start of the meeting. If members are unsure, they may consult with 

the Chair ahead of the meeting.  

Meetings  

The Forum will meet six times a year as a regular meeting cycle.  

Page 24



 

 

Additional meetings may be called by the Chair, in discussion with the 

relevant CYC Director or Assistant Director, on specific, time sensitive 

topics where the next meeting in the cycle would be too late.  

This will be limited to an additional two meetings a year.  

 

Review of Terms of Reference  
These Terms of Reference will be reviewed on an annual basis. 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 Implementing the Social Model of Disability
	Annex A York Access Forum Terms of Reference_Final Draft


